STATE OF WISCONSIN COURT OF APPEALS DISTRICT II

RECEIVED

05-26-2015

CLERK OF COURT OF APPEALS OF WISCONSIN

Appeal No. 2015AP000585 Winnebago County Circuit Court Case Nos. 2014 TR 0007212

COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO,

Plaintiff-Respondent,

v.

KELLI MARIE KOSMOSKY,

Defendant-Appellant.

AN APPEAL FROM THE JUDGEMENT OF

CONVICTION AND THE ORDER DENYING THE DEFENDANT'S MOTION FOR SUPPRESSION OF EVIDENCE IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR WINNEBAGO COUNTY, THE HONORABLE THOMAS J. GRITTON, PRESIDING

THE BRIEF AND APPENDIX OF THE DEFENDANT-APPELLANT KELLI MARIE KOSMOSKY

By: Walter A. Piel, Jr.

Attorney for the Defendant-Appellant

State Bar No. 01023997

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

Did the State establish that Trooper Phil Koehler had the requisite level of suspicion to conclude that Ms. Kosmosky operated her motor vehicle while impaired where the state failed to introduce evidence as to the time operation?

The trial court answered: Yes.

STATEMENT AS TO ORAL ARGUMENT AND PUBLICATION

Because this is an appeal within Wis. Stats. Sec. 752.31(2), the resulting decision is not eligible for publication. Because the issues in this appeal may be resolved through the application of established law, the briefs in this matter should adequately address the arguments; oral argument will not be necessary.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE/FACTS

The defendant-appellant, Kelli M. Kosmosky (Ms. Kosmosky) was charged in Winnebago County, Wisconsin with having operated a motor vehicle while under the influence of an intoxicant and operating a motor vehicle with a prohibited alcohol concentration contrary to Wis. Stat. §346.63(1)(a) and (b) on June 8, 2014. On July 17, 2014, Ms. Kosmosky, by counsel entered a written plea of not guilty to both charges, and filed a motion for suppression of evidence due to an unlawful stop and arrest.

A hearing on Ms. Kosmosky's motion was held on October 7, 2014, the Honorable Thomas J. Gritton, presiding. On that same date, the court denied the defendant's motion. A written order to that effect was signed on March 3, 2015. (R.23/A.App. 1). A trial to the court was held on December 23, 2014 where the court found Ms. Kosmosky guilty of both charges. Judgment on the verdict was entered on that same date.

Ms. Kosmosky timely filed a Notice of Appeal on March 19, 2015.

The pertinent facts to this appeal were adduced at the motion hearing held on October 7, 2014 and received through the testimony of Wisconsin State Trooper Phil Koehler. Trooper

Koehler testified that he had been employed as a Wisconsin State Trooper for three years. (R.30:3/ A.App. 2). He testified that he was working on June 8, 2014 at approximately 8:27 p.m. when he received a call of an unconscious female seated in the driver's seat of a vehicle parked in the Kwik Trip parking lot located in the Town of Winchester. When Trooper Koehler arrived, the vehicle was off. However, he claims that he overheard EMTs say the vehicle was running when they arrived. (R.30:4/ A.App. 3).

When Trooper Koehler arrived on the scene, he said he spoke with one of the EMTs who had a conversation with Ms. Kosmosky. The EMT advised that Ms. Kosmosky told her that she stopped because she was feeling the effects of alcohol. (R.30:5/ A.App. 4). When Trooper Koehler made contact with Ms. Kosmosky, he observed her to be a little lethargic, with glassy bloodshot eyes and slurred speech. He also could detect an odor of intoxicant from Ms. Kosmosky as well as her vehicle. *Id*.

In a conversation with Ms. Kosmosky, Ms. Kosmosky admitted she had been drinking earlier in the day at the Bridge Bar, had one or two tap beers, and had gone for a ride on a motorcycle. (R.30:6/ A.App. 5). Ms. Kosmosky was then

dropped off at her car and she had gotten back in her vehicle and drove home. (R.30:6/ A.App. 5). Ms. Kosmosky did not tell Trooper Koehler that she was feeling the effects of alcohol but Trooper Koehler indicated that he heard that from the EMT. *Id.*

On cross examination, Trooper Koehler indicated that he first made contact with Ms. Kosmosky at 8:51 p.m. Trooper Koehler admitted that he asked Ms. Kosmosky to perform field sobriety tests upon arrival. (R.30:8/ A.App. 6). Koehler's testimony was that after asking Ms. Kosmosky to perform field sobriety tests, he observed the odor of intoxicant coming from her vehicle. (R.30:9/ A.App. 7). Furthermore, Koehler admitted that he observed no problems with Ms. Kosmosky's motor coordination as she sat in the vehicle. (R.30:10/ A.App. 8).

Koehler admitted he could not remember the name of the EMT to whom he had spoken. *Id.* Further, no one observed the vehicle drive up to the location (R.30:11/ A.App. 9), and prior to having Ms. Kosmosky exit the vehicle for field sobriety tests, he did not determine the time in which the vehicle was driven to the location. (R.30:12/ A.App. 10).

Defense counsel argued that the evidence adduced by the State was insufficient to establish that Ms. Kosmosky was

impaired at the time of operation inasmuch as the State failed to put forth sufficient evidence showing the time of operation. (R.30:12/ A.App. 10). The State argued that the evidence supported the detention and the arrest. (R.30:13/ A.App. 11). The Court questioned that fact that there was no time of driving and how that played into argument. (R.30:13/ A.App. 11). However, in the end found that the evidence supported the initial contact and the continued detention and denied Ms. Kosmosky's motion. (R.30:13/ A.App. 11). The court stated that the issue as to the time of driving was one for trial. (R.30:14/ A.App. 12). A trial to the court was held on December 23, 2014, where the court found Ms. Kosmosky guilty of both counts.

Ms. Kosmosky timely filed a Notice of Appeal on March 16, 2015.

STANDARD OF REVIEW

When reviewing a motion to suppress, the appellate court accepts the circuit court's finding of fact unless they are clearly erroneous. However, the application of concepts and principles to those facts is a question of law which is reviewed de novo. *State v. Drew*, 2007 WI App 213, ¶11, 305 Wis.2d 641, 740 N.W.2d 404.

ARGUMENT

BECAUSE THE STATE FAILED TO ESTABLISH THE TIME OF OPERATION, THE EVIDENCE WAS INSUFFICIENT TO ESTABLISH PROBABLE CAUSE THAT MS. KOSMOSKY OPERATED HER MOTOR VEHICLE WHILE IMPAIRED

Probable cause "exists where the totality of the circumstances within the arresting officer's knowledge at the time of the arrest would lead a reasonable police officer to believe ...that the defendant was operating a motor vehicle while under the influence of an intoxicant." State v. Nordness, 128 Wis.2d 15, 35, 381 N.W.2d 300 (1986). Probable cause requires that at the moment of arrest, an officer knew of facts and circumstances that were sufficient to warrant a prudent person to believe that the person arrested had committed or was offense. Village of Elkhart Lake v. committing an Borzyskowski, 123 Wis.2d 185, 189, 366 N.W. 2d 506 (Ct. App. 1985). A reasonable police officer need only believe that guilt is more than a possibility. County of Dane v. Sharpee, 154 Wis.2d 515, 518, 453 N.W.2d 508 (Ct. App. 1990). Wis. Stat. §346.63(3)(b) defines operating a motor vehicle as the physical manipulation of the controls of a motor vehicle necessary to put The State must adduce sufficient the vehicle in motion. evidence to show that the evidence known to the arresting

officer at the time of the arrest would lead a reasonable officer to believe that the defendant was probably guilty of operating a motor vehicle while impaired. *State v. Lange*, 2009 WI 49, ¶38, 317 Wis.2d383, 766 N.W.2d 551. Probable cause is determined on a case by case basis using the totality of the circumstances. *State v. Kasian*, 207 Wis.2d 611, 621-22, 558 N.W.2d 687 (Ct.App. 1996)

WI JI-Criminal 2668, sets forth the elements of operating a motor vehicle while intoxicated. The first element is that the defendant operated a motor vehicle on a highway. The second element is at the time of the operation the defendant was To establish probable cause to arrest, not only must the State show that Ms. Kosmosky was impaired, but also that Ms. Kosmosky was probably impaired at the time of driving. The sole argument on appeal is whether the State established sufficient evidence that Ms. Kosmosky was probably guilty of being impaired at the time of operation. While Ms. Kosmosky did not challenge the fact of impairment at the time Trooper Koehler arrived, the crux of her argument was that the State failed to put forth sufficient evidence that she was impaired at the moment of operation.

Here, the State failed to adduce evidence at the motion hearing regarding when Ms. Kosmosky operated the motor vehicle. Based on the motion hearing record, we do not know when she drove from the Bridge Bar or when she arrived at the Kwik Trip gas station. Because of this, the evidence was insufficient to establish that Ms. Kosmosky was probably guilty of being impaired at the moment of operation. Thus, the detention of Ms. Kosmosky violated her right to be free from unreasonable searches and seizures under both the 14th Amendment of the United States Constitution and Article I, Section 11 of the Wisconsin Constitution.

CONCLUSION

Because the evidence was insufficient to establish the time of operation, the trial court erred in denying Ms. Kosmosky's motion for suppression of evidence. The court should reverse the trial court's ruling and vacate the Judgment of Conviction.