**RECEIVED**

**06-06-2015**

**CLERK OF COURT OF APPEALS  
OF WISCONSIN**

STATE OF WISCONSIN  
COURT OF APPEALS  
DISTRICT II

---

COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO  
Plaintiff-Respondent,

Case No. 2015 AP 585

v.

KELLI MARIE KOSMOSKY  
Defendant-Appellant.

---

BRIEF OF PLAINTIFF-RESPONDENT

---

ON NOTICE OF APPEAL FROM THE JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION  
AND THE ORDER DENYING MOTION TO SUPPRESS  
WINNEBAGO COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT  
THE HONORABLE THOMAS GRITTON, PRESIDING

---

**Christian A. Gossett**  
District Attorney  
State Bar No. 1040212

Attorneys for Plaintiff-Respondent

**Adam J. Levin**  
Assistant District Attorney  
State Bar No. 1045816

Winnebago County Dist. Atty's Office

## **I. Statement of Issue Presented for Review**

Whether the traffic officer had probable cause to believe Kelli Kosmosky operated her vehicle while intoxicated. The trial court ruled the traffic officer articulated probable cause to believe Ms. Kosmosky operated her vehicle while intoxicated.

## **II. Statement on Oral Argument and Publication**

The State is requesting neither publication nor oral argument, as this matter involves only the application of well-settled law to the facts of the case.

## **III. Statement of the Case**

The State believes Ms. Kosmosky's recitation of the facts of the case to be sufficient, and pursuant to Wis. Stat. 809.19(3)(a)(2), omits a repetitive statement of the case.

## **IV. Argument**

The evidence available to Trooper Koehler provided probable cause to arrest for the offense of operating while intoxicated.

Under both the Fourth Amendment of the US Constitution and Article I, § 11 of the Wisconsin Constitution, probable cause must exist to justify an arrest. *State v. Secrist*, 224 Wis.2d 201, 209 (1999). The burden

is on the State to show that the officer had probable cause to arrest. *State v. Willie*, 185 Wis.2d 673, 682 (Ct.App.1994). Probable cause to arrest for operating while under the influence of an intoxicant refers to that quantum of evidence that would lead a reasonable law enforcement officer to believe that the defendant was operating a motor vehicle while under the influence of an intoxicant. *State v. Kasian*, 207 Wis.2d 611, 621 (Ct.App.1996). Such evidence need not be sufficient to prove guilt beyond a reasonable doubt “or even that guilt is more likely than not.” *State v. Babbitt*, 188 Wis.2d 349, 357 (Ct.App.1994). It is sufficient that the evidence known to the investigating officer at the time of the arrest would lead a reasonable officer to believe that the defendant was probably guilty of OWI. *State v. Lange*, 2009 WI 49, ¶38. The determination of probable cause is made on a case-by-case basis, considering the totality of the circumstances. *Kasian*, 207 Wis.2d at 621-622.

In this case, Ms. Kosmosky challenges that Trooper Koehler had probable cause to believe that she drove while intoxicated. Br. of Defendant-Appellant, P6. Trooper Koehler’s conclusion that Ms. Kosmosky was operating her vehicle while intoxicated was more than reasonable in light of the evidence Koehler observed on scene, including

Ms. Kosmosky parking over a parking stall dividing line (R30:P4), a report the defendant was passed out in the driver's seat of her car, (R30:P3), the statement of an EMT that Ms. Kosmosky admitted stopping at Kwik Trip because she was feeling the effects of alcohol while driving (R30:P5), and Ms. Kosmosky's self-reported drinking history preceding her parking the car. (R30:PP5-6).

In short, Trooper Koehler observed Ms. Kosmosky drunk. She admitted driving to the Kwik Trip. She admitted pulling over because she was impaired by alcohol. The only way she is not guilty of OWI on this evidence is if she drank AFTER parking the car, a claim she never made.

Because Trooper Koehler's arrest of Ms. Kosmosky was lawful, all evidence subsequently gathered, including the chemical test result, was lawfully obtained, and Ms. Kosmosky's motion to suppress was correctly denied.

## **V. Conclusion**

For the reasons set forth above, Trooper Koehler's arrest of Ms. Kosmosky was lawful, and evidence gathered subsequent to the arrest is not subject to the exclusionary rule.

The trial court's denial of Ms. Kosmosky's motion to suppress should be affirmed.